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 Why Collect Stampless Covers? 

• Handstamped postmarks were applied to the 
mails on prestamp and stampless covers from the 
time of the American Revolutionary War in 1775 
until postage stamps were required on all 
domestic mail at the end of 1855.   
 

• These markings represent the essence of this 
nation’s postal history for its first 80 years, and as 
such, are significant and worthy collectibles. 

  
 



            The original focus of philately  
beginning as a hobby in the 1860’s,  
was solely on collecting stamps.  

It was not until the second decade of 
the 20th century that the collection of 
stamps on covers first became popular. 



In the 1920’s cover collectors began to 
collect stampless mail. The early 1930’s 
saw the first publications that studied 
the stampless mail. 
•                                

Postal Markings was 
published monthly from 
1930 to 1944 and helped 
establish the serious 
study and collection of 
stampless covers. 



TIPEX – The Early Days - Stampless Exhibits Are Accepted, But - 

                 Medal Award Levels Are Limited  

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                               Stampless – Group 19 

                                              
    

      No gold or silver-gold  
      awards for stampless  
      and prestamp mail       
     exhibits.  



Publication in 1938 of first Stampless Cover Catalog 
by Harry Konwiser and Stephen Rich 

 New Jersey listings include straight line, oval and circle postmarks.   
1780 PRINCE*TOWN postmark catalog value, the highest, at $10.00.         



American Stampless Cover Catalog, 5th ed., 1997, is the 
current catalog, but at 20 years old it is out of date.      
The United States Philatelic Classics Society is currently 
working on a project to update the catalog. 





  The American Revolution              
 PRINCETON 1775  
  

 

This Princeton straight line postmark 
was first used by the British 
Parliamentary Post. With the coming 
of the Revolutionary War, the 
Parliamentary Post ceased service and 
was eventually replaced by the 
Congressional Post established by the 
Continental Congress meeting in 
Philadelphia on July 26, 1775.   

  

This folded letter from Princeton to 
Philadelphia, dated September 11, 
1775, is the only reported use of this 
confiscated British Parliamentary Post 
handstamp used by the newly 
established Congressional Post. 

  

 



   The American Revolution                       
 PRINCE*TOWN 1780   

This folded letter from Princeton to 
Morristown, dated May 10, 1780, is the only 
reported use of this brown two-line 
Prince*Town straight line handstamp in 
collectors’ hands and the only cover from New 
Jersey showing the scarce 20 times rate.  

On December 28, 1779, the Continental 
Congress increased the restored 1775 
Congressional Post rates by 20 times reflecting 
the rampant inflation and resulting 
depreciation of the Continental paper 
currency.  

 

The rate is shown as 11 shillings with the 
equivalent “26-16” in silver (26 pennyweights 
& 16 grains = 80 pence) for a letter under 60 
miles. It is 20 times the 4 pence Congressional 
Post rate of 1775. 

  



Bordenton & New York Stage    
1786 

This is the earliest reported use of an        
independent mail handstamp. 

  
 

The Bordenton & New York Stage was 
established by Joseph Borden in 1740 and 
operated until 1792. This stage line carried 
passengers and freight between 
Philadelphia and New York. 

The route ran north from Philadelphia by 
“stage boat” on the Delaware River to 
Bordentown and overland by “stage 
waggon” to Perth Amboy, then sloop 
through New York harbor to Whitehall at 
the lower tip of Manhattan. 

 Only six covers with this boxed handstamp 
have been recorded, all north bound. The 
earliest reported on August 23, 1786 and 
the latest, shown here, with a Philadelphia  
date line of November 21, 1786. 

  

  

  

 



Postmarks after Post Office 
Act of 1792 

New Brunswick 

The Act of 1792 established a nine-zone 
tiered system of rates from six cents for a 
single letter sheet up to a distance of 30 
miles, increasing incrementally to 25 cents 
for a letter over 450 miles. Postage could 
be prepaid at the post office when mailed, 
or paid by the recipient when received. 

  

Rated at 8c rate for single letter sent from 
30 to 60 miles per the Act of February 20, 
1792. 

  

This unusual “N.B.” straight line postmark 
using only the town’s initials is reported in 
black from 1795-96. 

  

  

 



First Handstamps Provided by 
the U.S. Post Office Department 

  1799 
 In 1799 the United States Post 
Office Department provided 26 mm 
circular brass handstamps, with 
removable type for the year and 
the day, to 12 of the largest 
revenue generating post offices 
throughout the new nation.  

 

Both Newark and Trenton were the 
only two New Jersey towns to 
receive the handstamps, which 
were delivered on June 8, 1799. 

  

 



Early Circle Handstamps    
1800 to 1815         

In the first two decades of the 19th 
century, three of New Jersey’s larger 
towns, New Brunswick, Princeton, and 
Morristown introduced a variety of circular 
date handstamps that were likely 
purchased from local engravers. 

New Brunswick 1801. Use of this 27 mm 
handstamp from New Brunswick is 
reported from 1801 to 1803. 

 

Princeton 1810. Use of this 28 mm 
handstamp is reported in Black from 1802 
to 1826. 

 

 

Morristown 1814. This the only reported 
example of this 26 mm handstamp  with 
the “N.J.” not in italics.   
  
 



   OVAL HANDSTAMPS       
1813 to 1851   

NEWARK 

Oval handstamps were gradually  
introduced during the 1810’s.   
Eventually 12 New Jersey towns 
used these oval postmarks in the 
years from 1813 to almost the end 
of the stampless era in 1855.   

 

Newark used an oval handstamp 
from 1813 to 1836 in four sequential 
colors : Blue, Black, Red and Green.  

 

All four colors are shown. Green is 
the scarcest color and was used for 
only one month, July 1823. 

  

 
 



PATERSON OVAL 
    

 

The use of this 28 X 22 mm 
double oval in Black is 
reported from 1817 to 1822. 
  

  

 

 

The use of this 28 X 22 mm 
double oval in Red is 
reported from 1821 to 1830. 
  

 



FLEMINGTON OVAL 

Flemington used a 35 X 29 mm oval 
handstamp from 1825 to 1849 in 
five colors: Blue, Dark Red, Bright 
Red, Black and Brown.   

 

All five colors are shown.  

 

 

 

The scarcest color is Bright Red and 
was used only briefly in 1839. 



PEAPACK OVAL  
1842 

 

Fancy Rimless Oval with Dotted 
Fleurons 

 

Originally rated as 6c single 
letter not over 30 miles per the 
Act of April 9, 1816, and then re-
rated correctly at the 12c 
double letter rate due to 
enclosures. 

  

 



The contents of postal history  
are often fascinating. 

 



LAWRENCEVILLE 
STRAIGHT LINES 

Lawrenceville used six different 
handstamps from 1829 to 1854.   

All reported varieties and colors are 
shown in the exhibit including the 
scarce slanted letters in both colors 
and the two-line handstamp. 

Many of these locally produced 
handstamps made from printer’s 
type varied as much as 2 to 3 mm in 
length as a result of resetting loose 
letters, the loss of spacers and, the 
mixing of commas and  periods in 
the handstamp. 

  

 



BASKING RIDGE 
STRAIGHT LINES  

1833 TO 1835 

Two varieties of this 45 X 4 mm 
straight line handstamp have been 
recorded.  The first includes “N.J.”,  
the full abbreviation of the State.   

 

 

In the second, the printer’s type in 
this locally produced straight line 
handstamp slipped and, the “J” of  
“N. J.” dropped from the postmark 
at some point in early 1834. 

  
 



SPRINGFIELD STRAIGHT LINE  

 
This Blue handstamp’s use is reported 
in 1842. Four examples of this postmark 
have been recorded. 
 

UNION  STRAIGHT LINE 
 

This Black handstamp’s use is reported in 
1845. Three examples of this postmark 
have been recorded. 



 New Providence Fancy Mortised Handstamp  
1845 

This 47 mm fancy straight line was 
made from an ornamental book 
marker. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The town name and date were 
made from printer’s type and 
inserted into the mortised area of 
the handstamp, secured by a hand 
screw. 
  



Negative Lettered 
Postmarks 

 
The Haddonfield negative handstamp 
is considered the most outstanding 
New Jersey postmark from the 
standpoint of appearance. It was in 
use from 1840 to 1853. 
 

 

 

The Lambertville negative handstamp 
is reported from 1835 to 1841. It is 
the scarcer of these two negative 
handstamp postmarks. 
  

 

                                           

  



   
Circle Town Postmarks 1820 to 1855 

Circle town postmarks came into common service by 1830 and remained the most 
often used handstamp until the end of the domestic stampless period in 1855.            

A wide variety of styles were used including single circles, double circles, double 
outer line circles, rimless circles and county named town circles. 

 



Circle Town Postmarks 1820 to 1855 



Circle Town Postmarks 1820 to 1855 



Rimless Circle Town Postmarks  
 

Circle town postmarks without an outer rim saw service in many States from the 
mid-1830’s to the early 1850’s. Six New Jersey towns are included in this exhibit.  

 



County Named Postmarks  
County named handstamp postmarks were used in many States 
during the stampless period, including three from New Jersey in 

this exhibit.  
 



 
 
 

I hope you enjoyed the presentation and are ready to start a 
collection of stampless covers. 

 
Please consider becoming a member of the New Jersey Postal History 

Society. Membership is only $15 a year and you will receive the 
Society’s quarterly gold medal award winning journal, NJPH.    


